
          

 

 

PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 19, 2023 
4:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.palmbeachplantationcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

AGENDA 
PALM BEACH PLANTATION  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Palm Beach Plantation Clubhouse 

8751 Palm Beach Plantation Boulevard 
Royal Palm Beach, Florida 33411 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

April 19, 2023 
4:00 p.m. 

 
 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. March 15, 2023 Regular Board Meeting……………….…………………………………………..Page 2 

G. Old Business  

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Proposals for Lake 8 Erosion……………………………………………….Page 6 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Update……………………………………………………………………………………Page 7 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 

 

 



Page 1



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MARCH 15, 2023 

  

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Michael McElligott called to order the Regular Board Meeting of the 
Palm Beach Plantation Community Development District on March 15, 2023, at 4:07 
p.m. in the Palm Beach Plantation Clubhouse located at 8751 Palm Beach Plantation 
Boulevard, Royal Palm Beach, Florida 33411.  
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. McElligott presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting 
had been published in The Palm Beach Post on October 7, 2022, as legally required.  
 
C. DECLARE BOARD SEAT VACANCY & CONSIDER NOMINATIONS  
 
Mr. McElligott explained that seats 1, 3, and 5 were up for election in November of 2022 
and no one qualified for those seats. At this time the Board members in those seats are 
holdovers and it would be appropriate to declare the seats vacant and consider 
nominations to fill those seats for the 4-year term ending in 2026. 
 
There was a motion by Mr. Feltz, with a second by Mr. Warnet, to declare seat 1 vacant, 
and to nominate Mrs. Delgado to fill seat 1 for the remainder of the 4-year term ending in 
2026. The motion passed 4-0. Since there were no other nominations, Mrs. Delgado won 
the seat by acclamation.  
 
There was a motion by Mr. Feltz, with a second by Mr. Vey, to declare seat 3 vacant, and 
to nominate Mr. Warnet to fill seat 3 for the remainder of the 4-year term ending in 2026. 
The motion passed 4-0. Since there were no other nominations, Mr. Warnet wins the seat 
by acclamation.  
 
There was a motion by Mr. Feltz, with a second by Mr. Warnet, to declare seat 5 vacant, 
and to nominate Mr. Vey to fill seat 5 for the remainder of the 4-year term ending in 
2026. The motion passed 4-0. Since there were no other nominations, Mr. Vey wins the 
seat by acclamation. 
 
 
D. SEAT NEW BOARD MEMBERS, ADMINISTER OATHS, & REVIEW 

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 
 
Mr. McElligott administered the Oath of Office to all 3 newly appointed Board members. 
Mr. McElligott also briefly went over the Board responsibilities and duties.  
 
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 

Page 2



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MARCH 15, 2023 

  

Present and constituting a quorum were Russ Warnet, Richard Feltz, Rebecca Delgado 
and Bob Vey. 
 
Staff in attendance were District Managers Michael McElligott of Special District 
Services, Inc. and District Counsel Michael Pawelczyk of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro 
& Ramsey, P.A., and District Engineer Matthew Kahn of Caulfield & Wheeler Inc.  
 
F.  ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Mr. McElligott explained that since we have sat the Board members to new terms, it is 
appropriate to elect the officers of the board. The current slate of the board has Mr. 
Warnet as Chair, Mr. Feltz as Vice Chair, Mrs. Delgado, Mr. Vey, and Mr. Brackett as 
Assistant Secretaries, and Mr. McElligott as the Secretary and Treasurer.  
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Delgado, with a second from Mr. Feltz, to keep the current 
slate of officers the same. The motion passed 4-0.  
 
G.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
H. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  January 18, 2023, Regular Board Meeting  
 
Mr. McElligott presented the minutes of the January 18, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 
and asked if there were any changes or corrections.  Without comment, a motion was 
made by Mr. Vey, seconded by Mrs. Delgado that the minutes of the January 18, 2023, 
Regular Board Meeting be approved, as presented.  That motion passed unanimously. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 
  

1. Update on RFP for Lake 8 Erosion Project 
 
Mr. Kahn informed the Board that boundary and topographic surveys have been done and 
the bid package has been sent out.  Currently there are 6 potential companies that may bid 
on the project. The bids are scheduled to be back in time to review and consider at the 
April meeting. Mr. Warnet asked if the linear feet of work needed to be done on Lake 8 
was more or less than the last project they did for Lake 6. Mr. Kahn explained that Lake 8 

Page 3



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MARCH 15, 2023 

  

has more linear feet of repair needed, and cost of work has gone up since the lake 6 
project of 2019, so we would expect to see higher bids than the lake 6 project.   
 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
  

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
Proposed Budget 

 
Mr. McElligott presented Resolution No. 2023-01. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PALM BEACH PLANTATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. McElligott presented the budget. There was a lot of discussion regarding the cost of 
the future lake erosion projects and the speed of replenishing the reserve funds to pay for 
them. The budget presented did not include an increase, but if the Board wants to start 
doing the lake bank projects quicker and more often, we will need to increase the O&M 
assessment to build the reserve balance faster. Mr. McElligott reminded the Board that 
this is the proposed budget that sets the max assessment rate. The Board can lower O&M 
assessment rate at the final budget hearing, but not increase it.  
 
After an extensive conversation, a motion was then made by Mr. Feltz, seconded by Mr. 
Vey, passing Resolution 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget 
as amended to include a $75 increase to the O&M assessment and setting the Public 
Hearing for June 21, 2023, at 4:00 p.m.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 

2. Consider Approval of Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure 
 
Mr. Pawelczyk reviewed the memo in the meeting materials. He explained that the 
District Counsel rates have not increased since 2003. Mr. Warnet commented that the 
district counsel has always done a great job and has been a pleasure to work with. Mr. 
Warnet also commented that it has been too long for them not to have had any increases. 
 
A motion was then made by Mrs. Delgado, seconded by Mr. Feltz, to approve the 
adjustment to the District Counsel fee structure as presented.  The motion passed 4-0.   
 
L. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
  

Page 4



PALM BEACH PLANTATION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MARCH 15, 2023 

  

1.  Financial Report 
 
Mr. McElligott presented the Financial Report in the meeting book and opened it up for 
any questions.  There was no action required. 

 
2.  Other Matters 

 
There were no other matters.  
 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board member comments. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. 
Vey, seconded by Mr. Warnet to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 4:54 p.m.  That 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Asst. Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair  

Page 5



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF 
PROPOSALS FOR LAKE 8 EROSION 

 
TO BE DISTRIBUTED 

UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 6



Page 7


	Palm Beach Plantation Community Development District - April 19, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 15, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Approval of Proposals for Lake 8 Erosion
	Financial Update




